
October 4, 2021

MEMORANDUM 

To: Albany City Council Members 

From: Mala Subramanian, City Attorney 

Re: Closed Session 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2) (2 cases)   

CLOSED SESSION ITEM 

On July 20, 2020, the City received the attached letter from Mr. Shenkman of the law firm of 

Shenkman & Hughes, PC dated July 13, 2020.  Mr. Shenkman urged the City to voluntarily change 

its at-large system of electing its City Council, otherwise on behalf of residents within the 

jurisdiction he would be forced to seek judicial relief.   

The City Attorney has determined that this written communication from a potential plaintiff 

threatening litigation qualifies as “existing facts and circumstances” under the Brown Act, 

specifically Government Code section 54956.9(e)(3) and that there is significant exposure to 

litigation pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2).   

On December 14, 2020, the City Manager met with Jim Lindsay and Andrew Tang of Voter Choice 

Albany (VCA).  At this meeting the City Manager received a threat of litigation from VCA if the City 

continues to move to by district elections rather than rank choice voting at large.   

The City Attorney has determined that this statement qualifies as “existing facts and circumstances” 

under the Brown Act, specifically Government Code section 54956.9(e)(5) and that there is significant 

exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2).   

Attachments: 

1. Letter from Shenkman & Hughes

2. City Manager Email











1

Anne Hsu

From: Malathy Subramanian <Malathy.Subramanian@bbklaw.com>
Sent: Wednesday, December 23, 2020 12:00 PM
To: Anne Hsu
Subject: FW: Threat of Litigation VCA/CVRA

Warning: This email originated from outside the City of Albany. Think before you click! 

Hi Anne,  

Please attach this email to my staff report.  

Best, 
Mala 

From: Nicole Almaguer <nalmaguer@albanyca.org>  
Sent: Wednesday, December 23, 2020 11:52 AM 
To: Malathy Subramanian <Malathy.Subramanian@bbklaw.com> 
Subject: Threat of Litigation VCA/CVRA 

CAUTION - EXTERNAL SENDER.

Mala,  
On December 14, 2020, I met with Jim Lindsay and Andrew Tang representing VCA to discuss their questions regarding 
Measure BB – Ranked Choice Voting at Large and their concern that the City Council may choose to go to districts due to 
the CVRA threat letter that has been received. They informed me that they would be considering pursuing legal action 
against the City should the City continue to move to districts as in their opinion it was inconsistent with the Ordinance 
(Measure BB) as approved by the voters.  

Thanks,  
Nicole Almaguer 

This email and any files or attachments transmitted with it may contain privileged or otherwise confidential information. 
If you are not the intended recipient, or believe that you may have received this communication in error, please advise 
the sender via reply email and immediately delete the email you received.  


	Closed Session  City Attorney VCA and CVRA Threat of Litigation Memo
	Closed Session Att 1 - CVRA Letter from Shenkman & Hughes 2020.07.20
	Closed Session Att 2 - City Manager Email

